
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 6, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 848 3966 3901 

Password: 983703 
   

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Taylor Jones 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones 

A. Trustee Reappointment (For Your Information) Taylor Jones 

B. Change to Masking & Visitor Policies (For Your Information)  Kim White, 
Emergency Department Director 

C. Election of Officers (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

D. Committee Assignments (For Your Information) 

E. Employee Policies Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

1. Telecommuting (For Review) 

2. Social Media (For Review)  

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

June Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 
  

1/96



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 6, 2022 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 848 3966 3901 

Password: 983703 
   

AGENDA 
 
 
 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Cerner P2 Sentinel HIPAA Compliance Software 

2. Fibertech 

3. Frontrange Mobile Imaging 

4. MartinRay Laundry Systems 

5. Press Ganey Culture of Survey 

6. R1 RCM INC. 

7. Sweetwater Now 

X. Board Education Barbara Sowada 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President  

XII. Good of the Order                      Board President 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Board President 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Board President  

XV. Adjourn Board President 

 

2/96



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/96



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

June 1, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on June 1, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel, and Mr. Jeff Smith, 

Sweetwater Board of County Commissioners. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said a patient’s spouse stopped her at a community event and said they came to 

the Hospital and everyone was kind and caring. They said they had an exceptional experience and 

they are grateful the Emergency Department was there to take care of their loved one.  

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda with the additions of Board Assessment, Letter to County 

Commissioners, and Change of Plan for Officers was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the May 4, 2022, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

  

4/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Ms. Stephanie Thompson said Sweetwater Now has been tracking Covid numbers statewide and 

she asked what we are seeing at the Hospital. Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director 

of Emergency Services, provided an update. She said we have seen a bit of an uptick but nothing 

like we have seen in the past. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. White for the update. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Threshold Criteria 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services, said the reason for the revision is to match 

the new bylaws. The motion to approve the threshold criteria as presented was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Introductory and Probationary Period Policy 

 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, said it has been brought to our attention that we are trying 

to move employees around internally and when we had 90 days as the introductory period it 

worked but having one year for the introductory period is hard so we propose striking one sentence. 

The Human Resources Committee approved the change. This is a Board policy and it requires the 

approval of the Board. Mr. Kelsey asked why the provision was in there in the first place. Ms. 

Campbell said she thinks it was left in because when it was 90 days, it worked well because we 

wouldn’t want people to move within 90 days. Mr. Phillips said when it was 90 days it wouldn’t 

be fair to evaluate someone who would transfer in 90 days so it was more of an evaluation tool 

when in the position. He said we inherited it and did not develop anew but in light of the challenges 

it makes sense to strike that now under the circumstances. The motion to approve the change to 

the Introductory and Probationary Period Policy as discussed was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by 

Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Spending Authority Matrix 

 

Ms. Campbell reviewed the proposed changes. Mr. Jones said it gives Ms. Richardson more 

flexibility and noted the Board reviews everything she signs. Ms. Campbell said Dr. Sowada asked 

her to update the policy on behalf of the Governance Committee. Mr. Tardoni said emergency 

Covid powers are still in place for Ms. Richardson and she has handled that process exceptionally 

well. Mr. Jones said the matrix can be updated as needed. Mr. Tardoni requested spelling out “less 

than” and “greater than” instead of using the symbols. The motion to approve the Spending 

Authority Matrix with the changes suggested during the meeting was made by Ms. Pendleton; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

 Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan  & FY 2023 PIPS Priorities 

 

The motion to approve the PIPS Plan and FY 2023 PIPS Priorities as presented was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

5/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked staff for working incredibly hard. She said it has been a couple of difficult 

years and we are so fortunate to have amazing staff and physicians. Ms. Richardson expressed 

appreciation to everyone involved with the Cerner project and said we are excited for what the 

future holds. We continue to improve our person-centered care culture. Planetree Experiential and 

Communicating With Empathy Workshops continue. The Patient and Family Advisory Council is 

celebrating three years together and we feel fortunate to have the information they provide to us. 

Ms. Richardson reported she continues person-centered care rounding on staff. She said it is 

important to focus on taking care of the staff to support them taking care of the patients. Ms. 

Richardson said we continue preparing for The Joint Commission lab survey. She said it is very 

impressive that the Dialysis Department received a five-star rating. We hosted a Rock Springs 

Chamber of Commerce after hours meet and greet event May 11 at the Holiday Inn. It was an 

informal event where we had tables set up to share information. Numerous staff volunteered their 

time and we had a nice turnout. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Kelsey for attending and said we are 

grateful for the support of the Chamber to make that happen. She thanked Human Resources and 

Nutrition Services for a very successful Hospital Week. We celebrated three years of service award 

recipients at an awards banquet May 10. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Jones for attending and said 

staff were very thankful to be recognized. She said it is always nice to celebrate the staff and their 

accomplishments. Ms. Richardson reported we continue work on the FY23 budget. A Board 

Financial Workshop is scheduled June 13 at 10:00 a.m. and a Special Board Meeting is scheduled 

June 27 at 10:00 a.m. to approve the budget. Ms. Richardson said she presented a Town Hall via 

Zoom on May 13. June 1 is the official first day with Unidine in the Nutrition Services Department. 

We are looking forward to what they have to offer in the future. Ms. Richardson will present the 

annual report to the Board of County Commissioners on June 21. Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. 

Sowada and Mr. Tardoni for their participation in the Wyoming Hospital Association Trustee 

Education event in Riverton. She said she has received feedback that Dr. Sowada did an excellent 

job on the iProtean panel and thanked Dr. Sowada for her work to continually improve board 

governance. Ms. Richardson will attend the Wyoming Hospital Association Board Retreat at the 

end of June. Strategic Plan work is underway. She thanked the Board for their support and for all 

they do. She said we appreciate feedback and their partnership. Ms. Richardson thanked 

Commissioner Smith and the Board of County Commissioners for their continued support.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada referenced the packet in the board portal. She said there are some additions to the 

packet, for example, control charts that show how things are going, benchmarks, and improvement 

activities initiated. She urged everyone to delve in and thanked Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of 

Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, & Risk, and her team for their organization and work. 

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

6/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments and the financial information are in the meeting packet. He said 

capital is frozen but we have one a request for replacement for the coil in the air handler in the 

medical office building. It is brittle and we have no choice but to replace it. We received three 

quotes and selected the low bidder. Mr. Tardoni said Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, 

reports it qualifies for County maintenance funds. The motion to approve Capital Expenditure 

Request FY22-39 for $41,660 as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried. Ms. Love reported we have submitted requests for all available maintenance funds 

and will send this request through for next year’s funds.   

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $978,474.42 as presented was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. Mr. Tardoni asked Mr. Ron Cheese, 

Director of Patient Financial Services, to provide an update on the Cerner implementation. Mr. 

Cheese said we have been working on this project for the past 1.5 years during Covid and it is 

coming together. He said this is a clinically driven revenue cycle instead of a financially driven 

revenue cycle. He recognized Dr. Brianne Crofts and the lead project team for their work. 

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey provided a projects update. The medical imaging staff have moved into their area so 

the project is complete. We have a contract for bulk oxygen so we are excited to move forward. 

We are working with Lightning Eliminators to get that project done. Plan One has been working 

on options for the pharmacy chemo mixing room. Mr. Kelsey said the Committee has been busy 

with finishing projects and getting projects started.  

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, said the Board meeting at the end of May 

was pushed to early June. She will have more to report after the meeting. 

  

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the Committee met. The Chair report and meeting minutes are in the packet. He 

noted there have been some technical difficulties with the fair warning report.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said there was a discussion about the special purpose tax and our project of the lab 

remodel. There was some concern about whether or not the project fell under basic infrastructure. 

Mr. Jones said he spoke with a couple of Commissioners and shared with them that his opinion is 

a hospital in a county this size with our population is basic infrastructure. He said we can’t do 

hardly anything in our hospital without a fully functioning lab. We had approximately 76,000 visits 

last year and about 460,000 tests run in one year. Mr. Jones said one of the Commissioners asked 

for a letter from the Board stating our stance. There are possibilities of doing other projects for less 

money, for example, windows, parking, and the tunnel. Mr. Tardoni noted how we are getting our 

tests done. We took our Foundation area and converted it to a lab during Covid. Patients like it but 

7/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

it increased work for the staff. There is also a waste drainage issue in the area. We have a temporary 

situation that requires extra work. The interior lab requires a long walk and wait in a very small 

space with seating for maybe four or five people sitting shoulder to shoulder. The expansion would 

expand the waiting room. Mr. Tardoni said it is well worth doing. Ms. Pendleton asked about other 

funding options. Ms. Richardson said we could see if we could put some projects through the State 

Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) process. She said we haven’t heard if there will be changes to 

the ratio. For a $6.5M project, we’d have to come up with half of that. Mr. Jones noted there is no 

guarantee we would get the grant. Commissioner Smith gave an update and said he thinks there 

will be plenty of applicants for Covid funds. There will be projects trimmed from what is taken to 

vote. The Board of County Commissioners will work to refine the list. Mr. Kelsey shared some 

thoughts about the definition of infrastructure. He said he has no doubt our lab is a physical 

structure and needed for the operation of the Hospital. He said the State of Wyoming has some 

definite definitions about capital construction with a dollar threshold. He wants to see the lab 

project go forward because it really is an integral part of what we do and we can’t operate the 

Hospital without it. Dr. Sowada said she is in favor of the project. Mr. Jones said the letter is 

basically asking for the Commissioners’ support and includes the justifications. The motion to 

authorize Mr. Jones to sign a letter to the Board of County Commissioners stating we are in favor 

of going ahead with the lab remodel as a six penny item was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. 

Pendleton. Motion carried. 

 

 Dr. Sowada said we are coming to the end of the fiscal year. The Joint Commission requires an 

annual self-assessment survey. We used The Governance Institute survey last year. She asked if it 

is the pleasure of the Board to do that again and noted the survey is a service we have already paid 

for. The motion to use The Governance Institute Board self-assessment survey for the annual 

survey was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee developed the slate of officers for FY23. She said she is glad she 

sent it out early because we found Mr. Jones had been serving as president for three years. She 

said the Committee will have a slate of officers to present at the July meeting. She said anyone can 

recommend officers to the Committee by June 15. Dr. Sowada said committee assignments will 

be made at the July meeting as well.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

The motion to approve the contract as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Board reviewed a video from the American Hospital Association on enterprise 

leadership. She said she chose the topic in part because of challenges discussed at the Wyoming 

Hospital Association education session and thought the video points to Ms. Richardson’s 

leadership style, the Board’s leadership style, and our work with Planetree. Mr. Kelsey said a 

concept he really liked is we need to be agile and be able to pivot. Mr. Jones said we are doing a 

lot of the things the video suggested. He said we must make sure all of the information gets 

8/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

disseminated in the same words. Board members cannot be stuck in the past and must be more 

open-minded about a hospital being a different kind of animal and not like other businesses. Mr. 

Jones said the Board has one employee and that is the CEO. Dr. Sowada said the purpose or goal 

for the organization is spread across the organization to break down silos and work together. Ms. 

Richardson said she agrees with the comments and liked how the video talked about their strategic 

plan and working with leaders to develop, then go out and talk to every person to create the plan 

together and work on it together so every person is on the same page and working on the same 

goals.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts had to leave the meeting and there was no report. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

There were no comments. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would leave the current 

meeting, go to another link, and then return to the original meeting for actions taken following 

executive session. The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Jones said there would be a ten-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 4:48 p.m., the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as listed by 

Ms. Downs was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from May 10, 2022 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Adham Karim, Hospitalist 

2. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Wallace Curry, Urology 

 Dr. Mary Murphy, Radiology  

 Dr. Chandrashekar Yeshlur, Pediatrics  

3. Initial Appointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (1 year) 

 Holly Allen, Professional Counselor (SWCS)  

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Dipayan Chaudhuri, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Bruce Bray, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

9/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 1, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

 Dr. Cristina Cavazos, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Richard Jennis, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

5. Reappointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (2 years) 

 Todd Bader, Professional Counselor (SWCS) 

 

The motion to approve the provider contract and authorize the CEO to execute the contract as 

discussed in executive session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

The motion to approve the senior leaders recognition as discussed in executive session for their 

contributions during Covid was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m.   

      

 

 

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

10/96



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

June 13, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special workshop 

meeting via Zoom on June 13, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a message she received from a person traveling through town. The person 

started experiencing issues and stopped in our Emergency Department. The patient said the care 

was second to none and they have been to many hospitals around the country and we “have a gem 

here.”  

 

FINANCE WORKSHOP 

 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed information in a PowerPoint available to the 

Trustees in the board portal. Mr. Kelsey expressed appreciation to Ms. Love and the staff for a 

very good presentation. He asked for a periodic update report on contract staff expense from Ms. 

Richardson at Board meetings quarterly or whenever she would like to provide updates. Ms. Love 

reviewed the FY23 Operating and Capital Budget. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. Love for putting together 

the huge undertaking with good detail. He thanked the people who have stayed with the Hospital. 

He said he is glad to see there have been and will be things to show the Board’s appreciation. Mr. 

Jones said it is good to see the future looks much brighter than the past. He noted our hospital is 

in much better shape than some others in our area. The services we provide to our community and 

people passing through will continue and that is important. Mr. Jones said it is going to be critical 

to stay on top of this every day to make this budget work. He said the Hospital is a big ship and it 

takes time to turn. He thanked everyone again for their hard work. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. 

Love and her department for all their hard work. She said she agrees it is important to thank 

everyone who stayed with MHSC. She assured everyone we monitor financial information daily, 

weekly, monthly, quarterly, and she is happy to update the Board regularly. Ms. Richardson said 

she appreciates the Board’s support. Mr. Tardoni asked if we should consider a mid-year review 

if we need to change pricing. Ms. Richardson said we would have to look at contracts to see how 

11/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 13, 2022 Board of Trustees Special Workshop Meeting 

Page 2 

often we can make changes. Mr. Tardoni asked about obtaining more current data from the 

Wyoming Hospital Association. Ms. Love said it is hard to get comparative information without 

paying more so she will see if the auditors can obtain more current data.  Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. 

Richardson for her confidence level of “peer hospital” data. Ms. Richardson said Clifton Larsen 

Allen has a database and we can ask them if they will streamline to more closely relate to us 

regionally. Dr. Sowada said the report was well put together, thoughtful, and clear.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting 

adjourned at 11:23 a.m.  

 

 

       

        ___________________________________  

     Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

 

12/96



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

June 27, 2022 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on June 27, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online at the call to order: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, 

and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Mission Moment 
 

Ms. Richardson shared a story about a call we received from a patient who had a biopsy done. She 

had a very positive experience with Dr. Christopher Honeycutt and the medical imaging staff. She 

said the assistant was very supportive in helping her through the stress she was experiencing. Ms. 

Richardson said it was so nice the patient called us to share her positive experience with us.   
 

FY 2023 BUDGET 
 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed the budget. She said there were no changes 

from the information provided to the Board previously for review. Mr. Jones noted staff will have 

to monitor the budget very closely all year because it is a tight plan. Ms. Love said Cerner reports 

are being finalized to help monitor information closely. She said expenses are seen as they come 

through and we have a continued focus on reducing contract labor. Mr. Kelsey noted where we 

really have control is on the expenditure side. He suggested identifying five to six benchmarks to 

look at monthly. The motion to approve the FY23 Budget as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; 

second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Love and her team for their 

excellent work on the budget.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting 

adjourned at 10:24 a.m.  

      

        ___________________________________  

     Mr. Taylor Jones, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

13/96



14/96



EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 05/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/ 

policy/9756992/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Page 1 of 5  

 

COPY 

Status PolicyStat ID 
 
 

Approved 06/2021 

Review Due 06/2024 

Document 

Area 

Employee 

Policies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING 
 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

An MHSC employee who successfully completes the process to become a telecommuter will perform 

his or her job duties from a “workspace”. For purpose of telecommuting, the term “workspace” is defined 

as the immediate area in which the computer is located. 

The employee agrees that once he/she is a telecommuter, he/she remains subject to the terms and 

conditions of MHSC employment pursuant to MHSC employee policies, job descriptions, procedures, 

guidelines, and instruction. 

A telecommuting employee is eligible for the same benefits, insurance and worker’s compensation 

coverage as other MHSC employees. All benefits and subject to change by MHSC. Eligibility for workers 

compensation is determined through the worker’s compensation application process. Contact employee 

health or HR for information. 

Telework -temporary or occasional work from home. Telework is not telecommuting. 
 

A. Employees may work from home on an occasional basis only and only if pre-approved by their 

supervisor. If the employee's supervisor does not pre-approve the employee working from home 

and the employee chooses to work home without such approval, the employee's supervisor will 

enter PTO for the day the employee worked at home. Working from home is not the same as 

telecommuting and should only be used occasionally and not as a remote/telecommuting 

arrangement. 

TEXT 

A. Employees wishing to telecommute: 

1. Will apply to be a telecommuter through the Human Resource Department. 

2. If the application is approved by HR and the appropriate supervisor, the employee will be 

required to sign the Agreement to show his/her understanding of the terms and conditions of 

the MHSC Telecommuting Agreement. 

 

15/96



EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 05/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/ 

policy/9756992/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Page 2 of 5  

COPY 

B. Application 

1. Employees who desire to be a telecommuter shall complete a Telecommuting Application and 

submit it to the HR Department. HR will process this application as any other employment 

application. 

2. Employees who are allowed to telecommute will be subject to the Introductory period or 

Probationary Period policy depending on whether the employee is new hire or current 

employee. length and conditions as other employees. (See Employee Policies-Introductory 

and Probationary Period). 

C. Agreement 

1. Employees who are approved for telecommute shall sign and abide by a Telecommuting 

Agreement. The Agreement may require modification to fit individual telecommute-site 

circumstances. A copy of the Agreement will be retained in the employee's personnel file. 

2. Unless otherwise stated in the Agreement, the supervisor, the HR Department, Senior 

Leadership or the employee may discontinue the arrangement, generally giving at least one- 

week notice. The parties may negotiate a longer notice to provide for a smooth transition. 

D. General Provisions 

1. Communication. While telecommuting, the employee must be reachable by telephone, fax, 

pager, e-mail or MS Teams colloboration system during agreed-upon work hours. The 

employee and supervisor shall agree on expected turnaround time and the medium for 

responses. 

2. Conditions of Employment. The telecommuter’s conditions of employment shall remain the 

same as for non-telecommuting employees; wages, benefits and leave accrual will remain 

unchanged. 

3. Equipment. The telecommuter will provide his/her own workspace furniture, laptop computer 

and equipment. MHSC will provide VPN software for installation on the telecommuter’s 

personal computer. This will allow remote access to the hospital’s intranet. Any software 

provided by MHSC shall not be duplicated. 

4. Work Space. The telecommuter may hold business visits or meetings with professional 

colleagues or the public by electronic means (ZOOM, Microsoft Teams, etc.) but may not 

have in person meetings or in-person business visits at the workspace. Meetings with other 

MHSC staff at the workspace will not be permitted unless approved in advance by the 

employee's supervisor. 

5. Hours of Work. The telecommuter will have specific available hours and telephone 

accessibility with the department and supervisor. The agreed upon work schedule shall 

comply with FLSA regulations. Overtime work for a non-exempt employee must be pre- 

approved by the supervisor. Unapproved overtime work will lead to corrective action against 

the telecommuter. Excessive unavailability of the telecommuter will lead to corrective action 

as per Exempt or Non-Exempt Employee Policies. 

6. Incidental Costs. Unless otherwise stated in the Telecommute Agreement, all incidental costs 

of telecommuting, such as residential utility costs, Internet costs, phone costs or cleaning 

services, are the responsibility of the telecommuter. 

7. Inclement weather. If there is an emergency at the workspace, such as a power outage, the 

telecommuter will notify his/her supervisor as soon as possible. The telecommuter may be 

reassigned to the Hospital or an alternate work-site. 

16/96



EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 05/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/ 

policy/9756992/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Page 3 of 5  

8. Intellectual Property. Products, documents, and records developed while telecommuting are 

17/96



EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 05/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/ 

policy/9756992/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Page 4 of 5  

COPY 

the property of MHSC and will not be shared with others at the workspace. This includes any 

software provided to the employee such as VPN, or HIPAA compliant software. 

9. Network. MHSC will provide instructions on the installation and use of VPN software to allow 

secure connectivity to MHSC. 

10. Performance & Evaluations. The supervisor and telecommuter will formulate objectives, 

expected results, and job duty evaluation the same as is required for all MHSC employees. The 

supervisor will monitor and evaluate performance by relying more heavily on work results 

rather than direct observation. The supervisor and telecommuting employee will meet, either 

by phone or in person, at regular intervals to review the employee's work performance. 

11. Policies. All MHSC policies, rules and practices shall apply to the telecommuter including all 

employee policies, HIPAA, confidentiality, IT policies and computer usage policies. Failure to 

follow MHSC policies, rules and procedures may result in termination of the telecommuting 

arrangement and/or disciplinary action. Of utmost importance is compliance with MHSC 

confidentiality and HIPAA policies and requirements. 

12. Political Activity- The Hospital's Political Activity Employee Policy applies to employees who 

are telecommuters and corrective action will be pursued if a telecommuting employee uses 

Hospital equipment or Hospital software for political activity or in some other manner violates 

the Political Activity Policy while telecommuting. 

13.  Retention of Data. Products, documents, data and records that are used, developed, or 

revised while telecommuting shall be retained/maintained on MHSC equipment only and not 

the employee’s personal computer. 

14. Security. Security of records, files and other documents shall be maintained by the 

telecommuter at the same level as expected in the hospital. Confidential and PHI data shall 

not be shared with anyone in any format. Sharing of PHI with anyone other than those with 

approved access will result in immediate corrective action. 

Reviewed and Approved: 
 

HR Committee March 2021 
 

Memorial Hospital Board of Trustees May 5, 2021 
 

 

Attachments 
 

 
803058 - TELECOMMUTING Application 3.pdf 

 

 

Approval Signatures  

Step Description Approver Date 

 
Irene Richardson: CEO 06/2021 

 Tami Love: CFO 06/2021 

18/96



EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 05/2022. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/ 

policy/9756992/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
Page 5 of 5  

Ann Clevenger: CNO 06/2021 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical 

Officer 

06/2021 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal 

Counsel 

05/2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COPY 

19/96



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 11747024 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Administration 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

i. communications in on-line communities made on behalf of MHSC by workforce members are 
consistent with the Hospital's policies (including its Employee Policies and Code of Conduct), 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC or Hospital) believes that its participation in on-line 
communities and social media networks and websites can promote better communication with 
Hospital's colleagues and customers, the general public, traditional and non-traditional media, and other 
community stakeholders. Such participation may include, but is not limited to, postings in on-line forums, 
web logs (blogs), microblogs, wikis or vlogs (e.g., Facebook, LinkedIn, YouTube, Twitter, TikTok, health 
pages and blogs, media sites or other similar types of on-line forums). However, communications 
produced by members of MHSC's workforce on behalf of Hospital in the on-line community must be 
consistent with MHSC's Vision, Mission & Values statement, Employee Policies, the Hospital's Code of 
Conduct, or other Hospital policies and all applicable laws. 

MHSC takes no position on any staff member's decision to participate in social media in his or her 
personal capacity, such as to start or maintain a personal blog or participate in other personal social 
networking activities. However, the lines between public and private, personal and professional blur in 
on-line social networks, and personal social media activities can affect a workplace member's work 
relationships and performance. Workforce members must therefore abide by this Policy, and should 
familiarize themselves with the general Hospital's social media guidelines at the end of this document 
for more information and guidance. 

MHSC may require that a workforce member temporarily discontinue use of Hospital sponsored on-line 
communities or stop acting on behalf of Hospital if Hospital believes the staff members 
communications are in violation of MHSC policies, Vision, Mission & Values Statement, Hospital's Code 
of Conduct or applicable laws, including state and federal patient privacy laws. 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Policy is to ensure: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 6

20/96



DRAFT

Mission, policies, and applicable laws, including laws concerning privacy, confidentiality, 
copyright, and trademarks; 

ii. when a workforce member is not authorized to speak on Hospital's behalf, that his/her 
personal opinions in on-line communities express the fact that they are not representatives of 
Hospital; and 

iii. uses of Hospital-sponsored on-line communities are appropriate and that communications are 
accurate. 

iv. Social Media posts, videos, blogs, chats or other means of posting are not filmed/videoed 
using hospital medical/office staff, equipment, offices, rooms, patient rooms or any area or 
property of Hospital. 

• "MHSC or Hospital" means Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Hospital, including the 
Hospital, Medical Office Building (MOB) and all groups and facilities operating as part of 
Hospital (such as the Family Practice Clinic). "MHSC or Hospital" shall also include the 
Hospital Foundation and Hospital Auxiliary. 

• "Applicable law(s)" means all federal, state and local laws that apply to a workforce member 
when performing Hospital-related duties. 

• "Mission" means the Hospitals official Mission statement. 

• "Protected information" means Hospital confidential or proprietary information, intellectual 
property, protected health information of any Hospital patient and any other information that is 
confidential and/or privileged by Applicable Law against unauthorized use and/or disclosure. 

• "Hospital sponsored on-line community" means Hospital's official social media presence, such 
as its official Facebook page and Twitter feed. 

• "Workforce member" means a Hospital governing body member, employee, volunteer, trainee 
or contractor. 

I. Unofficial Participation in On-line Communities 
Unless a workforce member is serving as an approved, official spokesperson for MHSC in on-
line communications, such communications are the individual's personal opinions and do not 
reflect the opinion of MHSC. Each workforce member is personally responsible for his/her 
posts (written, audio, video or otherwise). 

a. Workforce members should not use Hospital provided email addresses or other 
identifying information (such as a work-related telephone number) to sign up for 
social media accounts. 

b. If a workforce member identifies him/herself as affiliated with MHSC on social 
media (i.e. identifying MHSC as his/her employer in a social media profile), the 
public may perceive that the member is speaking on Hospital's behalf, and Hospital 
reserves the right to require the member to follow the requirements of Section II of 
this Policy in his/her social media communications. 

II. If a social media communication is made in the workforce member's personal capacity, but the 
public could reasonably believe it is made on Hospital's behalf (i.e. because of the member's 

DEFINITIONS 

PROCEDURE 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 6

21/96



DRAFT

stated or known affiliation with Hospital, and/or the subject matter is relevant to his/her known 
employment), he/she should state that he/she is speaking personally and not on Hospital's 
behalf. 

A. For instance, the public may reasonably believe the workforce member is speaking 
on Hospital's behalf if the workforce member's social media profile identifies 
Hospital as his/her employer, and he/she is commenting on a Hospital or local 
health care-related matter. In that case, the member should state that he/she is not 
speaking for MHSC. 

III. Official Spokesperson, Other Job-Specific Participation in On-line Forums and Hospital-
Sponsored On-line Communities 

a. As outlined in Hospital's media relations policies, if a member of the media or non-
traditional on-line media (can include bloggers) contacts any workforce member at 
work about Hospital business (for example, MHSC news releases, operations, 
policies, practices, strategic commitments or additional business information of any 
kind), prior to responding, the individual must contact Hospital's Marketing 
Department at 307-352-8515. Hospital personnel will be presumed to be "at work", 
and subject to this Policy, if they receive the communication while on MHSC's 
campus, while on-duty, and/or using Hospital equipment. The Marketing Department 
will coordinate with other appropriate departments and/or may give an individual 
permission to serve as an official spokesperson, or prohibit the individual from 
providing information in an official capacity. Once an individual has approval to serve 
as an official spokesperson for Hospital, the individual must clearly identify himself/
herself as spokesperson for Hospital and clearly identify his/her scope of expertise. 

b. In some instances, a workforce member's department, or another department of 
Hospital in coordination with the Marketing Department, may ask the member to 
participate in particular on-line forums in other functional, job-specific capacities. 
Examples might include medical posts, collaboration with Hospital colleagues within 
blogs, micro blogs or forums, assist in recruitment efforts, or to share best practices 
on certain trade sites related to health care quality or the participant's profession. 
Prior to participation, the member and a representative of the Marketing Department 
should discuss involvement with the member's supervisor, receive approval and 
agree on parameters for the project, how the member should identify himself/herself 
in communications, as well as the length and scope of participation. 

IV. Personal Use of Hospital Sponsored On-line Communities 

a. Workforce members may not post any material to a Hospital-sponsored online 
community that includes Hospital protected information, or information that is 
obscene or defamatory, profane, libelous, threatening, harassing, abusive, hateful or 
humiliating to another person or entity. This includes, but is not limited to, comments 
regarding Hospital or Hospital personnel, customers, partners or patients. 
Employees should ask their managers and/or refer to Hospital's Employee, IT 
policies or other relevant Hospital policies if they have any questions about what is 
appropriate to include in web-based communications. 

b. Individuals who have concerns regarding workplace conduct or inappropriate 
behavior must contact their immediate supervisor, Human Resources or Hospital's 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 6

22/96



DRAFT

Compliance Officer. Online forums are not the most effective way to resolve such 
issues. 

V. Inappropriate Use of Social Media 

a. No workforce member should use social media in a way that jeopardizes the health 
or safety of any person at Hospital; interferes with the performance of his/her 
Hospital job duties or harasses, bullies, belittles or in any way disparages any person 
at the Hospital. Hospital may consider any social media use that poses a reasonably 
foreseeable risk of any of the above a violation of this Policy. 

b. Workforce members are prohibited from using or disclosing Hospital protected 
information without authorization, including but not limited to for any non-Hospital 
business. Hospital-protected information includes personnel information and quality 
management information, which is confidential under Wyoming law. Individuals may 
be held personally liable for obscene, or defamatory commentary, and for disclosing 
confidential personnel information under Wyoming's Public Records Act. Any 
Hospital person who is unsure whether information is "protected information", or 
whether the use or disclosure is authorized or for Hospital business, must first check 
with his/her supervisor before using or disclosing the information. 

c. MHSC workforce members, while on duty, are prohibited from posting pictures of 
themselves in any media, including, but not limited to, the Internet, which depict 
Hospital in any way, including, but not limited to, Hospital's logo unless the employee 
receives approval from a Marketing Department representative or designee. Photo 
policies for representatives of Hospital attending community events will be 
developed by Marketing Department on a per-event basis. Workforce members 
should consult Hospital's other policies concerning photography and video in 
Hospital's facilities for further guidance. 

VI. Right to Monitor 
MHSC reserves the right to monitor public comments or discussions about MHSC, its 
employees, patients and industry. Workforce members are cautioned that they should have no 
expectation of privacy while using Hospital equipment or facilities for any purpose, including 
authorized or unauthorized blogging. 

VII. Hospital Medical Staff Members 

a. This Policy applies directly to all Hospital Medical Staff members and practitioners 
with clinical privileges who are Hospital workforce members. 

b. Many of the provisions of this Policy are incorporated into Hospital's Medical Staff 
Bylaws, policies and Code of Conduct. Behavior that violates this Policy may also 
violate the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and/or Policies, including 
the Medical Staff Code of Conduct, and may subject the medical staff member or 
practitioner to the Medical Staff corrective action process. 

c. Medical staff members and practitioners who are not MHSC workforce members are 
not permitted to represent themselves as speaking on MHSC's behalf without 
permission of the Hospital administration. 

VIII. Reporting Violations 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 6

23/96



DRAFT

a. MHSC urges workforce members to report any violations or possible or perceived 
violations to supervisors, managers or the HR Department or Compliance 
Department. 

b. Violations of this Policy may result in disciplinary action up to, and including, 
termination. In addition, a violation of this Policy may also be a violation of an 
applicable law, which may carry the risk of civil enforcement or criminal prosecution. 
For instance, breaching the confidentiality of patient protected health information 
may also violate HIPAA, and subject the employee to legal proceedings and/or 
criminal charges by the federal government. 

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDELINES 

The following are guidelines for MHSC employees, staff, and medical staff who participate in social 
media. Social media includes personal blogs and other websites, including Facebook, LinkedIn, Pinterest, 
Instagram, TikTok, Twitter, YouTube, and others. Remember that content contributed on all platforms 
becomes immediately searchable and can be immediately shared. This content immediately leaves the 
contributing individual Hospital employees' and/or medical staff members' control forever. If you 
wouldn't want your manager or others at Hospital to see your comments, it is unwise to post them to the 
Internet. Failure to follow this policy can have consequences similar to violations of other Hospital 
policies. 

These guidelines apply whether employees are posting to their own sites or commenting on other sites: 

1. Follow all applicable Hospital policies. For example, you must not share confidential or proprietary 
information about Hospital and you must maintain patient privacy. Among the most pertinent policies 
are those concerning patient confidentiality; computer, email and internet use; photography and video; 
and release of patient information to media. 

2. Disclose your connection to Hospital. If you communicate in the public Internet about MHSC or MHSC-
related matters, disclose your connection with MHSC, including your role. Use good judgment and be 
accurate in your communications; errors and omissions reflect poorly on MHSC, and may result in 
liability for you or the Hospital. 

3. Where your connection to MHSC is apparent, make it clear that you are speaking for yourself and not 
on behalf of MHSC. In those circumstances, you should include this disclaimer: "The views expressed on 
this [blog; website] are my own and do not reflect the views of my employer." If you list MHSC as your 
employer, add this language in an "About me" section of your blog or social media profile. 

4. Use a personal email address (not your sweetwatermemorial.com address) as your primary means of 
identification. Just as you would not use Hospital stationery for a letter to the editor with your personal 
views, do not use your Hospital e-mail address for personal views. 5. Hospital strongly discourages 
"friending" of patients on social media websites. Staff in patient care roles generally should not initiate or 
accept friend requests except when an in-person friendship pre-dates the treatment relationship. 

6. Hospital discourages staff in management/supervisory roles from initiating "friend" requests with 
employees they manage. Managers/supervisors may accept friend requests if initiated by the employee, 
and if the manager/supervisor does not believe it will negatively impact the work relationship. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 6

24/96



DRAFT
Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

7. MHSC does not endorse people, products, services, or organizations. On social media websites such 
as LinkedIn, where your affiliation to MHSC is known, personal recommendations or endorsements 
should not be given or requested. 

8. Your social media name, handle, or URL should not include MHSC's name or logo, unless approved by 
the Marketing Department. 

9. Be respectful and professional to fellow employees, business partners, competitors and patients. 
Avoid using unprofessional on-line personas. 

10. Focus on work at work. Ensure that your blogging and social networking activity does not interfere 
with your work commitments. 

11. Don't disrupt the workplace/health system. You may be subject to action by Hospital for posting or 
promoting content that substantially disrupts or materially interferes with Hospital activities or that 
might lead Hospital authorities to reasonably foresee substantial disruption or material interference with 
Hospital activities. Disciplinary action may be taken based on behavioral misconduct or professional 
misconduct, and may range from a reprimand to dismissal. 

12. Payment is a conflict of interest. If someone or some group offers to pay a Hospital employee or 
medical staff member for participating in an on-line community in their Hospital role, offers advertising 
for pay and/or for endorsement, this could constitute conflict of interest, and Hospital policies and 
guidelines apply. 

13. Forward media requests. If someone from the media or press contacts staff about posts made in on-
line communities that relate to MHSC in any way, staff should alert their manager/leadership and 
contact the Marketing Department. 

14. Complaints. If a patient or family member posts complaints about service or other issues, notify 
Grievance or Quality Department. 

15. Questions? Call the Marketing Department at 307-352-8515 if you have any questions about what is 
appropriate to include in your blog or social networking profile. 

Approved HR Committee February 2022; Approved MHSC BOT April 6, 2022 Replaces Employee Policy 
Social Media policy 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. Retrieved 06/2022. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/11747024/. Copyright © 2022 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 6

25/96



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   6/30/2022 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

June 22, 2022 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality Board Chair), Kara Jackson 

(Quality Director), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO), Leslie 

Taylor (Clinic Director), Ed Tardoni (Quality Board Member), Tami Love (CFO), 

Irene Richardson (CEO), Cindy Nelson, Dr. Alicia Gray, Ann Marie Clevenger 

(CNO), Noreen Hove 

 

Non-voting Members:  Jennifer Rogers, Corey Worden, Valerie Boggs 

 

Guests: Taylor Jones (Board of Trustees Chair) 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Dr. Jacque Denker 

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel, Karali Plonsky,  

 

Guests: Kandi Pendleton (Board of Trustee) 

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Sowada opened with a mission moment related to the attended County Commissioner 

meeting yesterday – Ms. Richardson presented the End-of-Year Report and the 

Commissioners cannot say enough good about Ms. Richardson’s leadership and staff. But 

what stood out to Dr. Sowada was all the good and regular stuff that was accomplished 

during another year of COVID. 

 

Dr. Poyer followed with a Facebook post that Thanked the Amazing Doctors and staff at 

MHSC and in Utah for their work and care in relation to their child, who was involved in a 

tragic accident. Dr. Poyer commended the entire staff that handled this multiple trauma, 

staff assisted from all over the hospital.  

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Meeting was called to order at 8:15 am. Dr. Sowada presented the Agenda for approval.  

Mr. Tardoni motioned to approve, Ms. Richardson seconded. Motion carried.  Dr. Sowada 

then presented the April 16, 2022 Minutes for approval. Ms. Jackson motioned to approve 

and Ms. Richardson seconded. Motion carried.  

 

Old Business 

Ms. Jackson reviewed highlights from the Control Charts and Summaries, noting there are a 

few missing: Maternal deliveries percent total C-section, Abdomen CT w/ and w/o contrast, 

and Readmission. The reason for these missing reports, is they occurred during CERNER 

implementation and we haven’t found the exact equivalents. We are working with our report 

writer. ED 2B and OP 18b data is incomplete for April 2022, due to Cerner transition and 

pending confirmation of workflows and appropriate chart abstraction processes. 

 

 

26/96



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   6/30/2022 

Dr. Sowada asked about ED-2B (ED admit decision to ED departure) and are staff aware of 

the times or are they waiting for extraction by the Quality team for results? Dr. Poyer stated 

the ED staff receives information daily, to twice daily, and are always aware of the time 

factor.  

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the Annual Patient Safety and Performance Improvement Report FY 

2022, as a follow-up to our original visit with the Quality consultant, Mella. who provided the 

sample template, which we started last year and built on this year.  Ms. Jackson noted she 

hoped all appreciate the immense amount of hard work that was demonstrated and put 

into this report and the improvement work throughout the fiscal year, despite the difficulties 

COVID presented. She also gave a shout out to her staff who put the report together and the 

departments that aided and participated in the data collection and improvement work. Dr. 

Sowada seconded that notion! Ms. Richardson also agreed, noting the skill set of our staff is 

commendable. 

 

The Risk Management Program was reviewed by Ms. Jackson. Ms. Jackson stated this was 

outlined along with the Compliance Program and we are bringing it to the committee for 

review and approval. Dr. Sowada questioned a minor wording change under Risk 

Management Duties and Responsibilities – “Such response [may] include completion of a 

root cause analysis (RCA) or other appropriate analysis methods.” Dr. Sowada noted “may” 

should be “shall”, as a Sentinel Event requires a review. Decision was to keep this as an 

internal document. 

 

Next Ms. Jackson reviewed the Star Rating. CMS delayed the star rating until the July refresh. 

We will remain a 2-star. Going forward our focus needs to be on: C. diff, HCAHPS, Sepsis 

bundle compliance, PC-01 Early Elective Delivery, OP 23 head CT or MRI Scan Results for 

Acute Ischemic Stroke or Hemorrhagic Stroke Patients, and OP 29 Appropriate Follow up 

Interval for Normal Colonoscopy in Average Risk Patients.  Ms. Nelson stated the Senior 

Leadership and Clinical Directors will be meeting later today to review the Patient Experience 

and HCAHPS scores. Following with meetings with Non-Clinical Directors and Medical Staff 

later this month. We are developing the plan as an entire leadership team rather than the 

silos of leadership.                                          Dr. Clevenger interjected how helpful and 

beneficial Ms. Nelson has been with the Nursing Teams in identifying ways to move forward.  

 

Ms. Jackson followed with a review of the FY 2023 Proposed Changes to IQR Program. 

Highlight on Equity Measures, as TJC recently released pre-publication measures, that will go 

into effect on January 1, 2023. Quality of healthcare is not only on improving care, but 

focusing on populations that experience different outcomes. The next highlight is on 

improving Maternal morbidity, with new measures being proposed. The value-based 

purchasing program, where 2% is withheld from payment with a chance to earn an 

additional 2%, will be a neutral program this year. Which will hurt us a little, as we typically 

earn the bonus. Due to the impact of COVID, CMS will not penalize hospitals through the 

hospital acquired condition reduction program based on performance.”  The hospital 

readmission reduction program will continue, and hospitals nationwide may face a penalty 

based on performance. The penalty is up to 3% and we will have our final reports back in 

August or September. 

 

 

27/96



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   6/30/2022 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer was unavailable for Update. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

 

Mr. Tardoni questioned the workplace violence data numbers, and how many are actual 

direct physical violence. Per reports – 4 of the 11 were physical. Dr. Sowada questioned if 

there was a process in place in regards to filing with police. Dr. Quickenden noted that HR 

was working on a specific plan for Workplace Violence. Additionally, Dr. Clevenger noted we 

do have policies in place and will be sure to incorporate.  

Ms. Jackson shared a few updates on recent surveys. The Joint Commission was here last 

week for the Lab survey and this week Wyoming Department of Health arrived for the 

scheduled Dialysis survey. Lab did very well, final results are pending. The Dialysis survey is 

ongoing, but also going very well. Ms. Richardson stated is was wonderful to see everyone 

come together as a team, and making sure we were compliant. 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Dr. Gray to speak from the Hospitalist perspective. Dr. Gray noted we are 

focusing on our HCAHPS scores and we are excited to welcome our new Hospitalist – Dr. 

Ahmad.  

 

Dr. Sowada requested Ms. Taylor for any updates from the Clinic Services area. Ms. Taylor 

noted we have a few bumps with Cerner, but they are lessening. Our biggest concern right 

now is patient notification, which we are working on. Hopefully will be able to report next 

month this is better. Everyone has done a good job and we will have a great year. 

 

Dr. Sowada invited Ms. Richardson to close the meeting. Ms. Richardson gave a HUGE shout 

out to EVERYONE! It was very impressive to view the Commissioner report. It is nice to see the 

increased community support. Thank you to everyone for their hard work.  

 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:42 am 

 

Next Meeting    July 20, 2022 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

28/96



1 
 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Chair 

Re: Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Date: June 20, 2022 

 

The Human Resources Committee met June 20th from 3:00 to 4:00 pm by Zoom.  

 

Major discussion items were as follows: 

 Turnover is normalizing, approaching pre-Covid levels. 

 Contract and open positions are coming down. June open positions were 58 compared with over 

seventy in April.  

 Employee Policies – Telecommuting policy and supporting documents were approved. Policy will go to 

July Board meeting for potential approval. Supporting documents, the application and agreement, have 

been revised to match language in the policy. As internal documents, they don’t need Board approval. 
 The revised Social Media Policy was approved and will be presented at the July Board meeting for 

potential approval. 

For more detail, see the reports and minutes of this meeting that are included in the June Board packet. 

 

Next HR meeting will be August 15th. 

 

 

29/96



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – June 20, 2022 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Barbara Sowada, Kandi Pendleton 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Tami Love, Amy Lucy, Ruthann Wolfe, Shawn 
Bazzanella, Edward Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Barbara called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Kandi, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the May 16 meeting minutes was made by Amber, second by Kandi. Motion 
carried. 
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reported she is not seeing anything out of the ordinary in turnover. She is going to change the 
length of service as discussed at the last meeting but wanted to finish the fiscal year in the current 
format. Barbara asked about replacement costs for housekeeping staff. Amber said she has access to 
that information and will bring that to the next meeting. Barbara asked if we are looking at competitive 
wages with local companies. Amber said her data is for hospitals, not any other area industry. Amber 
said she continues to include rehire rates data in her report. She said we are seeing a lot of people who 
went PRN (Pro Re Nata) during Covid contact us about full time opportunities. They remained PRN so 
rehire numbers may not reflect those numbers. Barbara asked Amber to add that information to the 
report moving forward. Amber said she broke the Clinic out for this report. She said there is nothing to 
point out and said their numbers are also included in the cumulative information.  
 
Open Positions 

 

Amy said there are 57 open positions. The number decreased with new graduates coming out of nursing 
programs. She said we have been able to fill housekeeping positions. Amy noted the difficulty of filling 
lab medical tech positions. Barbara commended the group on their efforts to hire staff. 
 
Contract Staffing 
 
Amber said there is nothing out of the ordinary in the report. She said the total is obviously smaller as 
well and we can correlate open positions to the number of contract staff. Barbara requested a small 
narrative to this report showing the changes from month to month, whether it goes up or down. She 
said she remembers discussion of a goal to have numbers lower and said it would be nice to have a 

30/96



 

Minutes of the June 20, 2022 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

monthly number to compare from month to month. Amber said contract staff pay rates continue to 
decline up to 26% in one week. She said her staff monitors weekly. Amber said they go in and try to 
renegotiate current contracts.   
 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policies - Telecommuting 
 
Suzan said we had approved a telecommuting policy prior to Covid. It has been in place for a couple of 
years. We have an application and agreement associated with the policy. Suzan said the application and 
agreement didn’t really sync with the policy so it was updated to make them in-line with each other. 
Suzan reviewed the updates. Barbara confirmed senior leaders have reviewed and approved. Suzan 
reviewed the updated application and said it reflects the person has the capability to work from home 
and their supervisor agrees with that decision. The agreement will be signed and placed in the 
employee’s HR file. Suzan said she did not make any changes following distribution to senior leaders for 
their review. She said the IT Director has also reviewed and submitted suggestions that Suzan 
incorporated. Barbara asked Suzan to renumber the updated information. The motion to present the 
policy to the Board for first reading was made by Kandi, second by Suzan. Motion carried.  
 
Employee Policies – Social Media Policy 
 
Suzan said the policy was approved by the Board two months ago. We realized we must update with 
more specific language. Barbara asked who is monitoring and holding people responsible. Suzan said it 
should be the department director and supervisor. She said we need to take care of issues in the 
moment. The motion to bring the policy to the Board for review at the July meeting was made by Irene, 
second by Kandi. Motion carried.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Mission Moment 
 
Barbara asked Amber to share a mission moment. Amber said she received a text letting her know The 
Joint Commission was in-house while she was out of town. She said she received amazing feedback that 
the HR staff did a great job pulling everything together and did wonderful work. She said “bravo” to a 
wonderful team! Irene commended HR for their work with the survey. She said they did an excellent job. 
She gave a shout out to everyone working on this plan. Irene said we have to focus on lowering contract 
staff numbers and thanked the Board for their support.  
 
Next Meeting 
 
Amber requested the July meeting move to another date. Barbara said there is no point in having a 
meeting to have a meeting, suggested canceling for July, and meeting August 15.  
 
Barbara thanked everyone for preparing for the meeting and for their participation. 

31/96



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD   

June, 2022 meeting 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in Zoom format this month.  All voting members were present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual (MAY) F&A reports are included in the Board packet.  Board attention is directed to the May 

bad debt amount. The downward trend from the record highs we saw in the past months continues.   

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES – none were presented for consideration 

OTHER BUSINESS 

A number of forward-looking issues were discussed during the meeting: 

(Cener EMR Implementation.)  Staff has a three hundred item punch list that is being worked down with 

Cerner.  The economic impacts of that were discussed.  Items of note were: 

Missed clinic appointments attributed to malfunctioning of the automated appointment alert system.  

No shows to date  are higher than normal and are excessive.  The revenue loss associated with that was 

discussed. 

Days in AR being high due to amounts not billed that rest in the Legacy systems.  Those accounts are 

starting to be processed with $1,300,000 billed out as of the meeting. That effort is underway with the 

original amount in the Legacy systems being $11,500,000.  This will have a positive effect on the days 

cash on hand number as billing progresses. 

(FY 2023 Budget Management) Issues related to forward looking reporting were discussed.  Items of 

note were: 

The budget calls for replacement of contract employees with permanent staff over a period of time.  The 

HR department is preparing a progress report format that will be reported through the HR committee of 

the Board. 

We will be functioning with a new budget but with the same ongoing challenges.  Staff confirmed the 

restrictions on capital expenditure will stand for the time being.  The restriction will be reconsidered as 

the impacts of rate increase, contract employee actions, processing of Legacy system amounts and 

resolution of anticipated Cerner issues improve our financial situation. 

It was noted that the Patient Navigation system, as of May, resulted in a positive bottom-line impact of 

just over $1,900,000. 

(Audit) Two audits will be going on in the near future.  The normal end of fiscal year audit and a one 

tune audit of the accounting for covid related funds.  That special audit was a feature of the allocation of 

the funding we received. 

The auditors will be on site August 1st for the 2022 fiscal year audit pre audit planning, 

32/96



July Meeting 

A routine July F&A meeting will not be scheduled.  This will allow staff to conduct closing and work with 

the two audits that will be conducted.  This is also to allow staff to pursue the Cerner punch list. 

Staff will ask for a meeting should an issue arrive that needs called to the attention of the Committee. 

 

33/96



34/96



35/96



36/96



37/96



38/96



39/96



40/96



41/96



42/96



43/96



44/96



45/96



46/96



47/96



48/96



49/96



50/96



51/96



52/96



53/96



54/96



55/96



56/96



57/96



58/96



59/96



60/96



61/96



62/96



63/96



64/96



65/96



66/96



67/96



68/96



69/96



70/96



71/96



72/96



73/96



74/96



75/96



76/96



77/96



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…June Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  June 28, 2022 
 
Medical Imaging Renovation…the fire doors are scheduled to be installed in early 
July. When this task is completed…the project is completed. 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…staff has decided on one of the three options; 
however, some design modifications are necessary. Mr. Wheatley stated that the 
team decided to place the exhaust on the inside of the building. 
 
Dr. Sulentich’s Office…work should begin on or about August 1st. A small change 
order associated with flooring needs to be executed. 
 
Building Automation System…work is continuing. Project is approximately 35% 
completed. 
 
Bulk Oxygen and Landscaping…work is progressing. Discussion occurred regarding 
the buried utility lines. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…this project is encountering some potentially difficult 
issues. First, it has been determined that the installer must be UL certified. There 
are relatively few of them in our region. Still no contract price. Original cost 
estimates ranged between $150,000 and $180,000. Now, the cost could potentially 
be up to $400,000. I asked Mr. Horan to expand his search for a contractor to the 
Salt Lake City and Billings areas. It may be necessary to re-evaluate this project from 
a risk management perspective. It may be prudent to not proceed with the project 
taking into account insurance coverages, cost of the project, and potential severe 
damage to certain types of Hospital equipment.  
 
Special Purpose Tax/SLIB Funding…the County did not include the Hospital’s lab 
project in the SPT proposal. Staff is looking into making a SLIB application. Matching 
funds are required and there is some indication that the County may be willing to 

78/96



provide matching funds. We will know more after the July 19th Commissioner’s 
meeting. 
 
For more detailed information, refer to the B & G meeting minutes in the packet. 

79/96



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

June 21, 2022 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on June 21, 2022, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the May 17, 2022 meeting. Mr. Tardoni 

made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

No discussion. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Johnston said the fire doors will be installed July 10 – 11.  They were delivered two weeks 

ago and the install has been scheduled with Groathouse to return for the installation.  The rest of 

the project is completed.  

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Wheatley said they just recently met with staff to discuss pros and cons of the three options.  

An option was decided on and they will be making a few minor revisions to the design and meet 

again in the next couple of days. Mr. Kelsey asked if the decision had been made to exhaust inside 

or outside the building.  Mr. Wheatley said it is more economical to exhaust inside the building 

and actually cost prohibitive to put outside the building and have to cover it up the unsightly 

materials recommendations from staff at the next meeting.   

 

 Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Wheatley said A Pleasant Construction submitted a change order for flooring and that material 

has been ordered.  The flooring will be the last of the material that needs to be delivered before 

they can begin.  They are scheduling an August 1 start date and working with Dr. Sulentich to pin 

80/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 21, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

down the schedule for his patients and workflow.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the change order.  Ms. 

Love said due to the cost of the change order, $6,308.77, Ms. Richardson and herself approved it.  

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Johnston said ICU Vavs have been upgraded and then they will move to Med Surg and OB.  

Vaughn’s has been busy so Harris is doing what they can until Vaughn’s can come back in August 

to complete the Vavs.  He would estimate they are about 235-40% complete. 

 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Horan said the hospital must provide the barricades for the temporary tank and the temporary 

system must be integrated into our alarm system.  There have been several conversations with the 

Wylie Construction and Western Engineers regarding the buried utility lines and the safety and 

risk being managed.  There is a lot of coordination happening.  

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Horan said Lightning Eliminators has advised we have a UL listed installer do this project.  

Our local authority is also requiring a Wyoming licensed electrician.  The local contractor is 

looking into becoming UL certified.  The out of state contractor is UL certified and is willing to 

get a Wyoming license.  Lightning Eliminators is working with both contractors.  The original 

proposal was about $180,000.  The newest proposal is now as much as $400,000 because of the 

change in Wyoming license requirements and certified installers.  Mr. Tardoni said we may need 

to look at the risk versus cost of this project.  Mr. Kelsey agreed and asked if we should get a 

second opinion or at least expand our range of where we are looking for specialty contractors. Mr. 

Kelsey asked how much we have already paid for this project.  Ms. Love reported we have paid 

$19,990 to Lightning Eliminators.  Mr. Horan will expand the search for contractors. 

 

Special Purpose Tax Projects 

 

Ms. Richardson reported we will not have a project placed on the SPT ballot in November.  We 

will be moving the laboratory expansion project to the SLIB application.  We are also looking at 

the MOB entrance and the Surgery Suite and Central Sterile project as additional SLIB projects.  

During the year-end presentation to the County Commissioners this morning, the Commissioners 

mentioned they may be able to help with the matching funds as required by SLIB using their ARPA 

and PILT funds.  We will be attending the July 19 Commissioner meeting to discuss and request 

the matching funds.  Ms. Love shared the timeline of the SLIB process and the matching fund 

requirements.  She said we are still waiting on the final application to be released but we have been 

meeting internally to get the information together so we are ready to apply. 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the County has reserve funds if their ARPA funds can’t be used to match SLIB. 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Ms. Love said Mr. Wheatley has been onsite to look at the OB Shower project.   

 

 

81/96



 

 

Minutes of the June 21, 2022 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

New Business 

 

No new business was discussed. 

 

Other Business 

 

The next meeting will be held July 19, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 4:14 

p.m. 

 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

82/96



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…Compliance Committee Meeting…June, 2022 
Date:  June 28, 2022 
 
Overtime Audit…the audit for overtime is coming along nicely. It should be completed by the 
end of July. No significant findings of non-compliance. The Hospital’s policy for non-exempt 
employees does not provide for “compensatory time” in lieu of paid overtime. Compensatory 
time is allowed by law for governmental employers. I just wondered why the Hospital does not 
allow for that option. It can present additional record keeping challenges and I did not indicate 
that the Hospital should allow for this option. 
 
Cybersecurity was discussed. The IT Department provided a report on the status of 
cybersecurity. Cybersecurity will be audited this year. 
 
Insurance audit was discussed. The Hospital’s property insurance company reviewed issues 
concerning risk management and safety. 
 
Fair Warning Reports…Fair warning reports are part of the old (legacy) system and will be 
phased out. Fair Warning is being replaced by P2Sentinal. Another new report is Synergi. This 
will be used to detect HIPAA violations and other related patient issues. Several reports of co-
worker “snooping” were reported and are being investigated. 
 
A report was provided regarding “standing items” covering several topics including, among 
others, hotline reports, fraud, misconduct, and regulatory changes. Nothing of major 
significance was reported. 
 
Irene suggested it is time to do a major training on HIPAA. Suzan concurred. 
 
For additional detail, please refer to the Compliance Committee minutes in the Board Packet. 
 
 
 
 

83/96



 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

   Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

June 27th, 2022 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, CEO, Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, April Prado, Foundation & 
Compliance, Marty Kelsey, Trustee-Chair 
Absent: Kandi Pendleton, Trustee 

 

Minutes 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:02 am by Marty Kelsey. 
Agenda 
The June 27, 2022 agenda was approved as written, Irene made the motion and Suzan seconded it. 
Motion carried with no discussion.  
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from May 23rd, 2022 were presented. Irene made the motion to approve the 
minutes as written and Suzan seconded. Motion carried with no discussion.   
 

Old Business 
a. Overtime Audit 

The overtime audit timeline was presented for discussion. Marty stated that it looked good 
and that it appears we are covering our bases. Suzan explained that the first part is what the 
Department of Labor would look at if they were onsite and the second part is items that 
herself, Irene and Tami had decided on as a facility. Marty questioned the word “should” in 
#4, stating that he thought it was mandatory. He then asked about the hospital’s policy on 
“comp. time”. He stated that he knows we don’t have one and asked if this was deliberate 
or just something that we haven’t done. Irene answered that the hospital hasn’t discussed it 
but that it is something that could be looked at. Marty went on to further explain comp time 
and stated that there are rules and regulations to it. He also said that he isn’t suggesting 
that we do this, just asking out of curiosity. Irene added that she doesn’t recall this being 
previously addressed but it is something they could look at. Marty also added that our policy 
about non-exempt employees needed cleaned up and Suzan stated that it had been and the 
policy was in for approval. Marty said that non-exempt vs exempt employees is a hard 
decision to make and often a grey area. Irene stated that it definitely is and that the hospital 
has criteria in place that must be met for exempt employees. She continued that that we 
have to error on the side of caution with this process especially with overtime; and we do all 
we can to make sure we are doing it correctly. Marty asked for clarification on the dates of 
the audit and Suzan stated that originally it had been September 1st but she asked April to 
move it to July 31st.  
 

New Business 
a. IT Cybersecurity Report 

Suzan presented an email from T.J. the IT Director. She had reached out to T.J. to see what they 
are doing in their department as far as cybersecurity is concerned. The email was very detailed 
and covers a lot of items. Marty stated that it looks like he knows what he is doing and is aware 
of the issues at hand. He then asked for any questions. Irene asked for clarification that the 
cybersecurity audit will take place after the overtime audit. Suzan said yes that is correct. Marty 

 

84/96



 

also asked if T.J. brought any concerns that he had to Suzan. Suzan said that they had only been 
emailing and that she would be meeting with him soon and also that IT is doing the best to 
address any issues as fast and the best that they can.   
 

Standing Items-Reports 
a. Standing Items Report 

The standing item report was presented for review. Suzan added to section B, subsection c. 
Physical Plant audit, stating that the written report had been submitted and that there was 
only one compliance issue found. This was with cybersecurity and will be addressed in the 
next audit. She stated that the other issues found were mostly with risk management and 
hospital safety. These issues were reported to the proper chain of command and did not 
need reviewed here. Suzan also added Lab and Dialysis surveys had been onsite. She said 
that those reports don’t go to this committee but wanted the committee to know that she 
was aware that the surveyors were here. 

b. HIPAA Monitoring/Fair Warning Report 
The HIPAA Incident Report was submitted for review. Suzan first clarified that Fair Warning 
is now only used for our legacy system (our old system) and was used for internal flagging. 
She explained the process was the system notifying us, report entered/ investigated, sent to 
HR, HR sent to supervisor, supervisor review and decision on corrective action, sent back to 
HR, finalized in the reporting system. Suzan continued that she had spoke to Amber in HR 
this morning and additional cases have been closed but after this report was generated. She 
also said that a hospital wide email will be going out to employees about HIPAA as well as 
more training for employees. She then explained that two other systems are in place and 
will be appearing on this report. The first is P2Sentinal; this will be replacing Fair Warning. 
This program is set up different but still does internal flagging. We are currently working to 
get the information we need from their specialists and reports. The last program being used 
is Synergi. This one is set up to capture the patient HIPAA violations-like if the wrong patient 
information was released to another patient. Suzan reported that we have not received any 
of these reports. Suzan talked to Leadership about these types of occurrences and how 
these are the more concerning and need to be entered. She added that it would be great if 
we are not having any but we also need to make sure they are being reported if we are 
having them. Marty asked Suzan for better clarification on the programs. Suzan stated that 
the same report will be submitted to this Board but now we could potentially have three 
reporting systems listed. Fair Warning will be mostly disappearing as it is just monitoring our 
legacy system. Synergi, which is our Quality reporting system and is utilized for external 
flagging. She again talked about the importance of these ones and if they are happening, 
getting them reported. And lastly P2Sentinel, which will replace Fair Warning and is 
monitoring our new system, Cerner. Marty added that moving forward it would be 
P2Sentinel and Synergi. Suzan stated yes.  

 

Additional Comments 
Marty asked for additional comments and or questions. Irene asked about HIPAA training and how it 
would be done. Suzan responded that our last big training was done in 2018 and through COVID we 
have relied on Net Learning. Irene stated that it may be time to do another big training and Suzan 
agreed. Marty asked that the minutes be out by the end of the week and April said they would be out 
later today. 
 

 

85/96



 

Next Meeting    

The next meeting will be on July 25th, 2022 @9:00 am.  Marty added that he was not sure what Board 
Members would continue to be on this committee as the new Board President would decide that.  
   

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:31 am 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
April Prado, Recording Secretary 

 

86/96



 

Minutes 

Governance Committee Meeting 

June 16, 2022 

Present: Taylor Jones, Barbara Sowada, and Irene Richardson 

Call to Order: Irene Richardson called the Zoom meeting to order at 11:00 am 

Agenda was created during the meeting  

Minutes had been previously approved 

Old Business – Slate of Officers for FY 23 was revised. Revised slate is Barbara Sowada, President; Taylor 

Jones, Vice President; Kandi Pendleton, Secretary; and Ed Tardoni, Treasurer. Committee received no 

other nominations by the June 15th deadline. Voting will take place at the July meeting, at which time 

Committee assignments will be announced.   

New Business 

1. Board education. Decided that iProtean videos for July are the three short videos on 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion.   

2. Mental health service needs were discussed. No action taken. 

   

The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 pm. 

Next meeting is Thursday, July 21, 2022, at 11:00 am by Zoom. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

87/96



88/96



89/96



90/96



91/96



92/96



93/96



94/96



95/96



96/96


	Agenda - July 6 2022 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes for June 1 2022 Draft
	Minutes for June 13 2022 Special Workshop Draft
	Minutes for June 27 2022 Special Meeting Draft
	Trustee Reappointment
	Telecommuting
	Social Media
	Quality Committee
	Chair Report to Board June 22 Barbara Sowada
	Human Resources Minutes June 20 2022 Draft
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	June Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...June 2022 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes June 21 2022 Draft
	Compliance Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...June 2022 Marty Kelsey
	Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes June 2022 April Prado
	Governance Committee
	Cerner P2 Sentinel HIPAA Compliance Software
	Fibertech
	Frontrange Mobile Imaging
	MartinRay Laundry Systems
	Press Ganey Culture of Survey
	R1 RCM INC.
	Sweetwater Now

